
MINUTES OIr A CONI lNUED MEIrI-lNG OF l'llE Cll'Y
COI-INCIL OF THE CIT'Y OI] COEL,IR D'ALENE. IDAHO-

HELD AI'I'HE I,II]IIARY COMMUNITY ITOOM

.lune 24. 202.{

'fhe Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene mel in a continued session olsaid Council
at tlre Coeur d'Alene City Library Community Room on June 24, 2024, at 12:00 p.m., there being
present upon roll call a quorum:

.lamcs I lammond. Ma1,or

Woody McEvers
Christie Wood
Dan Gookin
Dan [:nglish
Kiki Miller
Amy livans

Members ol'Clouncil Prese nt

Member ol' Council Absent

DEPARTMENT HEADS PRESENT: 'l'ro1 Tymesen" City Administratori Renata Mcleod.
Municipal Serviccs Director/City Clerk; Katie Ebner, frinance Director/ City Treasurer; 'fed

Lantzy. Building t)flicial; Thonras Greif. Fire Chiel'l Melissa Tosi, Human Resource Direct6rt
Michael Priest, Library Direchrt Bill Greenwood. Parks & Recreation Director; Lee White. Policc
Chiel: Todd Feusier. Streets & [Jngineering Director: Mike Anderson. Wastewater Superintendent:
Kvle Marine, Water Superintendent: and Rvan Hunter, Deputy City Attorney.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor I lammond called the meeling to order.

OVERVIEW: Citv Adminislrator Tro),Tymesen said the rvorkshop is being held to discuss the
Prelinrinary Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-2025 Budget and fbr Council to provide input to staff. He stated
that the budget 1br medical insurance is not locked in yet and the COLA for the Fire Departnent
is still under negotiation.

STAFF PRESENTATION:
highlights:

Finance Director Katie Ebner's presenlation included the fbllowing

Since 2020. the taxable value for the city has increased by 126%. Valuations tbr residential
property grew at a higher rate than commercial.

'lax revenues generated liom new construction and annexations have dropped over 70Yo
compared to 2016. This is mainly caused by changes from rhe state legislature and rapidly
increasing assessed values in the city. New growlh tax revenue is capped based on a
preliminary levy rate. When assessed values go up, the levy rate drops which reduces the
funding to be captured liom new construction each year, which compounds over several
years.



a

Due to the City's dropping levy rate and the 90% limitation imposed by the legislature. the
City has lost an estimated $1.8 Million in annual revenues ti<lm groMh since fiscal year
(l-Y) 2019-2020.

The l'Y 2024-2025 budget includes $2.2 Million being used tiom f'und balance ro
supplement revenues and operations.'lo sustain a healthy llnancial outlook. t'und balance
should be considered one-tirne money fbr one-time uses.

fhe preliminary budget ref'lects a $4,118.167 dip into the fund balance, of which only $1.9
Million is considered one time deficit spending.'['his leaves a projected ongoing deflcit in
the operations budget of $2.2 Million.

In order to move toward a balanced budget, it is suggested to cut the IT Coordinator request
fiom the Police Department and the "sign-on bonus" line item. but honor bonus payments
already promised. Also. take an additional l7o of fbregone taxes to recover some ol llnds
lost u'ith the drop in new construction and annexation revenues. These changes would
reduce the ongoing deficit by $525.000.

DISCTISSION:

Mayor Hammond asked whether a complete remedy is expected given that the Assessor's office
is addressing the disparity on the disproportionate changes fbr residential taxpa)'ers. with Ms.
Ebner responding that the assessed value that canle in lower than expected may take elltct and
even out next tax year. Councilmember Wood recalled that since she's been on the Council. the
Citl' has had a very healthy lund balance and requested a history of the fund balance in the next
budget presentation. Additionallv. it would be good to know what is done each year to replenish
the f,und balance.

Councilmember Wood inquired on the proposed duties of the Operations Technology Position and
why u'ould it report to Municipal Services. with Ms. Mcleod explaining that it is an IT position
that will be assigned to Water and Wastewater to perlbrm operations technology roles and part ol
the goal to centralize the existing IT system. Councilmember Gookin stated thal he doesn't see
the need for the position to be under MS and that the Water and Wastewater Departments can just
share the position. Wastewater Director. Mike Anderson stated that they neetl an IT expert that
would assisl them in their operations in concert with the City's I. f. system. He added that. leaming
f'rom the cyberattack incident, there is a need that personnel rvorking in the network should be tied
into the City's network personnel.

Cour.rcilmember Wood asked why the exempt classificalion comp sludy remained at $ I 0.000 at lhe
Human Resources budget with Ms.Tosi responding that il is the original cost tbr reviewing.iob
descriptions. but it will double the amount to $21.000 il'they do a lull review ofjob descriptions.
Due to the state ol'the budger. it was lcli at thc lo\\er cosr nro.ioct.

Ms. Ebner explained thal the Police Department lixpansion and 3 Additional Oflicers are granr
lunded. Councilmember Wood requested to put those in a capital investment Iine item and asked
for theJob description ofthe proposed I f personnel. Chief White explained that the IT personnel

Council Workshop Minutes: June 24.2024 Page 2



proposed in the Police Department would be doing majority ofthe IT services tbr tire trucks, patrol
cars and code entbrcement vehicles. Councilmember Miller pointed out that the City has an I-l'
Department and asked if in other cities if they have a separate IT stafF working fbr their Fire and
Police Departments. Chief White stated that it depcnds on the size olthe city, fbr example where
he oame fiom, they have 6zl enrployees working tbl the IT Police Departnrent while there is a
sep.rrate lT in the City that pertbrm network administration. He added lhat the database that their
l'l' statf are working on is very specilically related to public sat-ety and police rvork such as the
Spillman Software Svstem. He mentioned that if the Il'is housed in only one department, there
uill be a concern on lhe volume ofwork and prioritization. Councilnrember Gookin asked ifthere
is a COLA in the budget with Ms. Ebner responding that the negotiations with [rire Union is coming
up so that is not listed on the budget yet.

Councilmember Wood incluired about the $140.000 increase in janitorial services under Building
Maintenance with Mr. Adarr Korytko explaining that it is not a ner.r,tund. but it used to be lur.nped
into Contract Services and they jusl broke that out to get a better idea on what is actually spent on
custodial contract serVices.

Irire Chief Grief explained that they placed $97.300 into overtime which is fbr the alternale
response 1AR) trial unit tbr six months. He added that these AR units will be an attempt to keep
the tire engines in certain z-ones in the city. Councilnrernber Wood questioned the communications
budget increase ol $45.000 with Chief Greil' responcl ing that they also need $30.000 increase tbr
nrobile radios and fire engine ambulances and then $ I 0,000 increase fbr Spillman user fees.

Mr. Greenwood explained that the Parks Deparlment has a vacancy fbr a pay grade level 9 and
rvould want to converl it into an ofTice assistanl position: however. they have not flnalized the pa),
lcvel. lle stated that a pay grade 6 entry level might not be sustainable fbr the enrplovee to stav irl
the position. Ms. Tosi pointed out that an entry level Administration position is at a level 6 pa1'
grade and the City doesn't have an Administration position at level 8. She noted that if an
employ'ee is hired to perfbrnt duties equivalent to an adnrin assistant position and sharing duties.
then they should be hired at pay grade level 10. hence Parks would need additional funding to
cover tlte diflerence. She f-urther explained that to go tiom a pay grade 6 tcl an admin assistant pay
grade l0 will be about $10.000 jump lor year one. Mr. Greenwood stated thal they need to fill this
posilion because stafl'that are deployed in the lield had to come back to the olllce to cover fbr
lunch break or vacation days of the sole Administration Assistant and she is also extremely bus_v..

dealing uith Parks concerns. Councilmember McEvers asked if the Citl can cut back on programs
to cover the funding needed. Councilmember Wood pointed out that the Recreation Department
grew fiom 336 kids in 2021 to 580 in the spring o12024 and asked ilthe f'ees are suflicient to pay
lbr the programs. Recreation Superintendent Adanr Rouse stated that their numbers have increased
dramatically, fbr example the kids golf program increased f'rom 450 last summer to 1,000 today.
Councilmember Miller reiterated that there might be a need to think oldiscontinuing the scrvir;es
i1'there is not enough f'unding to cover the stall' requirement and the program. Mr. Greenwood
explained that the public pays a fee to use the park: however none of those generated fees are
enough to pav lbr the stalling. Mr. T1'mesen shared that Parks is holding a vacanr Recrearion
Program Coordinator position right norv.

C'ouncil Workshop Minutes: June 24. 2024 Page 3



Mr. 'lymesen stated that the nerv posilions of Police Otficers and Municipal Services Operatitlns
I'echnologl staff are lunded through grants and/or cnterprise tunds. so those will be a very minimal
inT pact overall to balance the hudget by cutting thosc.

C'ouncilmember Wood requested a presentation ol'the [:'und Balance history and projection all the
$'ay lhrough FY2029 on what it looks like fbr tax revenues tiom Coeur'['erre. Atlas Waterf-ronl
and closure of urban renewal districts. Ms. Ebner mentioned that new annexations and
construclions u'ill conre in, but it will be dillicult to capture unless the levy rate increases. She
added that the revenues coming in mav not be enough to offset all the ongoing personnel-related
costs. Mavor Hanrmond stated lhat the City can get the budget balanced this year. but he is
concerned about the succeeding budgets. Councilmemher Miller shared that. based on the
Association ofldaho Cities discussions. the legislature is likely to look at urban renewal again fbr
possible changes. Mr.'Iynresen stated that some positions are on hold to avoid using savings to
fund the operations. He explained that the proposed cuts to move towards a balanced budget are
a result olmeetings with the departments prior lo this meeting.

Mavor Hammond asked the staff to provide recommendations in the budget workshop on horv to
nreet a balanced budget. with better information on n!'\\'gro\r.th. medical insurance. and fund
balance history through 2029.

MorloN: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, that there being no other business, this
meeting be adjourned. Motion carried.
'I'he meeting adjourned at l:37 p.m.

Hamnrond. av0r

AfTEST:

ffLu
J nne Mateski

x utiVe Assistant

Council Workshop Minutes: June 24,2024 Page4


